
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Delegated Officer Decisions 
 

Tuesday, 7th July, 2020  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date of despatch of Agenda:  Tuesday, 07 July 2020 
 

Public Document Pack



Agenda - Delegated Officer Decisions to be held on Tuesday, 7 July 2020 (continued) 
 

 
 

 
To: All Councillors  

  

 

Agenda 
 

Part I Page No. 
 
 1    DfT Fund Delegated Decision Report 1 - 12 
  Purpose: To provide supporting information for a delegated 

officer’s decision by the Executive Director for Resources (in 
consultation with the Portfolio Holders for Transport and 
Countryside and Finance and Economic Development) to add 
£3.048m of DfT grant funding to the Council’s capital 
programme (in accordance with 10.10.2 of the Council’s 
Constitution). 
 

 

 
Sarah Clarke 
Service Director: Strategy and Governance 
 

West Berkshire Council is committed to equality of opportunity. We will treat everyone with 
respect, regardless of race, disability, gender, age, religion or sexual orientation. 

If you require this information in a different format or translation, please contact 
Moira Fraser on telephone (01635) 519045. 



Additional DfT ‘Pothole’ Funding 2020/21 

West Berkshire Council Delegated Officer Decision 07 July 2020 

Additional DfT ‘Pothole’ Funding 2020/21  

Delegated Officer Decision Report  –  Executive Director Resources 

Date of Committee: N/A 

Portfolio Member: Councillor Richard Somner 

Date Portfolio Member agreed report: To be consulted 

Report Author: Jon Winstanley 

Forward Plan Ref: N/A 

1 Purpose of the Report 

1.1 To provide supporting information for a delegated officer’s decision by the Executive 
Director for Resources (in consultation with the Portfolio Holders for Transport and 
Countryside and Finance and Economic Development) to add £3.048m of DfT grant 
funding to the Council’s capital programme (in accordance with 10.10.2 of the Council’s 
Constitution). 

2 Recommendation 

2.1 To approve the addition of £3.048m of DfT grant funding to the Environment capital 
programme to be allocated as detailed in Appendix C to this report. 

3 Implications and Impact Assessment 

Implication Commentary 

Financial: The use of this funding to support highway asset management 
activities as proposed will reduce future pressures on revenue 
budgets. 

Human Resource: None 

Legal: None 

Risk Management: The proposed use of this funding would form part of the 
Department’s business as usual activities.   

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



Additional DfT ‘Pothole’ Funding 2020/21 

West Berkshire Council Delegated Officer Decision 07 July 2020 

Property: None as a result of this report. 

Policy: This proposal is in line with the Council’s statutory duty to 
maintain the public highway and in accordance with the 
adopted Highway Asset Management Plan. 

 

P
o

s
it

iv
e
 

N
e
u

tr
a

l 

N
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 Commentary 

Equalities Impact:     

A Are there any aspects 
of the proposed decision, 
including how it is 
delivered or accessed, 
that could impact on 
inequality? 

 x  No equalities implications 

B Will the proposed 
decision have an impact 
upon the lives of people 
with protected 
characteristics, including 
employees and service 
users? 

 x  N/A 

Environmental Impact: x   The funding will be used in line with sound 
asset management techniques to reduce 
the need for future ad-hoc emergency 
maintenance which can be relatively 
uneconomical and adds to the Council’s 
carbon footprint.  The funding will also be 
used for drainage improvements to add 
resilience to climate change and to replace 
street lighting stock using more 
environmentally friendly materials and low 
energy lighting units.  Surfacing will be 
undertaken using low temperature asphalt 
where practical to further reduce 
emissions. 

Page 2



Additional DfT ‘Pothole’ Funding 2020/21 

West Berkshire Council Delegated Officer Decision 07 July 2020 

Health Impact: x   The proposed use of the funding will 
improve footways and carriageways that 
are on key utility cycle routes which will 
help promote active travel.   

ICT Impact:  x  None 

Digital Services Impact:  x  None 

Council Strategy 
Priorities: 

   A well-managed highway network is 
essential to supporting the local economy. 

Core Business:  x  Business as usual 

Data Impact:    None 

Consultation and 
Engagement: 

Capital Strategy Group, Highways Asset Manager. 

4 Executive Summary 

4.1 During May 2020 the DfT announced additional funding from the Pothole Action and 
Challenge funds which has been distributed to Local Authorities formulaically.  West 
Berkshire Council’s allocation is £3.048m.   

4.2 In addition the Secretary of State for Transport wrote to Highway Authorities and the 
Highways Sector as a whole with a request that where possible, maintenance works 
should be accelerated to help return the sector to pre-Covid levels of work. 

4.3 The Environment Department employs sound asset management principles through its 
adopted Highway Asset Management Plan and the proposed allocation of the funding 
detailed in Appendix C is: 

(a) Directly in line with the request from central government. 

(b) Deliverable in the current financial year. 

(c) Fulfils the terms of the grant funding. 

(d) Delivers value for money and will reduce future pressures on the Environment 
Departments revenue budgets. 

Page 3



Additional DfT ‘Pothole’ Funding 2020/21 

West Berkshire Council Delegated Officer Decision 07 July 2020 

5 Supporting Information 

Introduction 

5.1 This report seeks delegated officer’s approval to add £3.048m of DfT grant funding to 
the 2020/21 Capital Programme.  A proposed allocation of this funding can be seen in 
Appendix C. 

Background 

5.2 On 15th May the DfT announced an additional £500m Pothole Fund nationally to be 
allocated to Highway Authorities in the 2020/21 financial year.  Although entitled 
‘Pothole Fund’ the purpose of the fund is ‘to carry out maintenance activities that would 
prevent potholes forming in the first place’.  This funding has been allocated to Local 
Authorities in accordance with the DfT’s formulaic approach (based on length/category 
of road, along with numbers of street lighting units and highway structures). 

5.3 Additionally, the government announced that it is not proceeding with the planned 
competition for Phase 2 of its £93m Challenge Fund (WBC were successful in securing 
£4.5m from phase 1 in 2019/20 towards resurfacing the A4).  The competition has been 
scrapped due to Covid 19, which has meant the funding has been brought forward into 
this financial year and the funding has been allocated formulaically.  This funding is for 
general use on ‘Highway Asset Management’. 

5.4 This means the total combined amount of additional funding from the DfT for 
expenditure in 2020/21 is £3.048m (£2.570m from the ‘Pothole Fund and 0.478m from 
the Challenge Fund).   

Proposals  

5.5 It is proposed that the funding be used in accordance with the sound asset management 
principles as set out in the Council’s Highways Asset Management Plan and it targeted 
at delivering value for money and preventing future pressures. 

5.6 Appendix C details the proposed allocation across a range of highway asset 
management areas.  In general terms £2,598k will be spend on measures that will 
directly prevent potholes from forming and £450k will be spent on other highway asset 
management improvements, which is acceptable within the terms of the two separate 
grant sources. The terms of the funding dictate that the funding must be spent this 
financial year, otherwise the funding could be at risk.  The proposed allocation is in line 
with business as usual activities which can be procured through the Council’s highways 
term contract with minimal lead in time.  Therefore work could start on the proposed 
activities in July and should be completed this financial year. 

6 Other options considered  

6.1 As part of phase 1 of the Challenge fund the Council submitted a bid for £1.329m for 
the Great Shefford flood alleviation project.  This £2.430m project is to construct a flood 
alleviation channel to protect properties in Great Shefford from flooding.  The scheme 
would also prevent the A338 from being inaccessible during flooding and protect the 
road from flood damage, which was the basis of our bid to the DfT. The remaining 

Page 4



Additional DfT ‘Pothole’ Funding 2020/21 

West Berkshire Council Delegated Officer Decision 07 July 2020 

£1.101m required to deliver this scheme would be subject to funding from the 
Environment Agency. This bid was unsuccessful as it did not deliver value for money 
under the DfT’s assessment criteria in comparison to other bids. 

6.2 The option to use this additional DfT funding to supplement the Great Shefford scheme 
has been considered.  However there are a number of issues that had to be taken into 
consideration: 

(a) The funding must be used this financial year.  The Great Shefford scheme will 
require complex detailed design, planning permission, land negotiation and does 
not sit within the scope of the highways term contract.  It would therefore be subject 
to a procurement process (either full or via an appropriate framework).  It is not 
considered possible to achieve these milestones and construct this financial year. 

(b) The Environment Agency funding needed to supplement this scheme is by no 
means secure and is unlikely to become available in-year if requested.  Again this 
significantly increases the risk of non-delivery. 

(c) The challenge fund element of the grant issued is a maximum of £478k.  It is 
debatable whether this project would fulfil the terms of the pothole element of the 
grant.  This would leave a significant funding shortfall. 

For the above reasons it is not deemed feasible to deliver the Great Shefford flood 
alleviation scheme using this funding.  However, officers will continue to work with the 
Environment Agency and other stakeholders to pursue appropriate funding 
opportunities to deliver this scheme.  

7 Conclusion 

7.1 On 7th May 2020 the Secretary of State for Transport, The Rt. Hon. Grant Shapps MP 
wrote to all Local Authorities recognising the work of the Highways Sector throughout 
the lockdown period.  In the letter he announced project ‘Safestart’ aimed at restoring 
highway sector works to pre-Covid levels and bringing forward highway maintenance 
works to help stimulate the economy.  This proposal directly supports this government 
initiative.  

7.2 The proposed allocation of this funding is in line with sound highway asset management 
principles, it will deliver value for money and will offset future pressures on asset 
management revenue budgets.  The Department can deliver this work alongside 
existing work streams and early approval of this report will mean the funding will be 
spent this financial year. 

8 Appendices 

8.1 Appendix C – Proposed Funding Allocation. 

 

Background Papers: 

See Report 

Page 5



Additional DfT ‘Pothole’ Funding 2020/21 

West Berkshire Council Delegated Officer Decision 07 July 2020 

Subject to Call-In: 

Yes:  No:  

The item is due to be referred to Council for final approval  

Delays in implementation could have serious financial implications for the 
Council 

Delays in implementation could compromise the Council’s position 

Considered or reviewed by Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee or 
associated Task Groups within preceding six months  

Item is Urgent Key Decision 

Report is to note only 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Document Control 
 

Document Ref:  Date Created:  

Version:  Date Modified:  

Author:  

Owning Service  

  Change History 
 

Version Date Description Change ID 

1    

2    

 

Page 6



Appendix C - Proposed Allocation of Additional DfT Funding (£3,048,000) 

 

Service Area Existing 20/21 
Capital Budget 

Proposed 
additional 
allocation. 

Comments 

Capital Drainage £475,000 £648,000 Prolonged and heavy rainfall last winter, resulted in a substantial 
increase in the number of drainage issues reported to the Council, 
from members of the public, Ward Members and Parish Councils. 
Identified reserve schemes on Capital Programme (2020/21) to be 
promoted. Procurement of JetVac to cleanse existing systems across 
the district for a period of between 4-6 months. Asset Collection to be 
undertaken to improve asset register and enable cleansing to be 
undertaken on a “risk Based” approach. 

Street 
Lighting/Electrical 

£100,000 £300,000 Over the last couple of years our stock of ‘British Steel’ manufactured 
lamp columns have been identified as having significant issues with 
corrosion around the hot swaged joint between the base compartment 
and the shaft, and also at the bracket joint. We have had at least two 
bracket failures (where the brackets/lanterns fell to the ground) and 
several columns that have shown signs of severe corrosion around the 
swage joint. The corroding of the brackets is almost impossible to pick 
up reliably with any test, and while the swage joints can be 
ultrasonically tested we have found results to be inconsistent in the 
past. 
We have identified approximately 400 lamp columns manufactured by 
British Steel manufactured before the year 2000 which are considered 
to be most at risk, and of those there are approximately 240 that we 
would like to be considered for immediate replacement. The cost of 
replacement is around £1,000 a column (£240,000). 
 
The remaining £60,000 will be used to replace/refurbish the existing 
rising bollards in Newbury Town Centre.  The aging system and  

P
age 7



access controlis now becoming obsolete and needs a replacement of 
the readers and refurb of the bollards themselves. 
 

Footway 
Programme 

£70,000 £250,000 Increased number of complaints received through the Council’s ELM 
system regarding the condition of footways across the district. The 
Council have not had an annual footway improvement programme for 
over five years. The Asset Management Team have undertaken a 
Footway Network Survey (FNS) and developed a list of potential 
schemes. 

Highway 
Structures 
(Bridge Bearings) 

£500,000 £150,000 Curridge Turn Bride is a single span structure built in 1974 carrying a 
Class C road over the A339, north of Newbury. The bridge deck 
consists of pre-stressed M8 beams with a reinforced concrete top slab. 
The top slab has a camber of 1 in 40 and a minimum depth of 160mm. 
The overall square span is 24.7 metres between centres of bearings. 
The beams are supported on each abutment by eleven elastomeric 
bearings. The abutments are of reinforced concrete construction and 
are on spread foundations. 
The parapet is a standard Group 2 vehicle / pedestrian parapet of post 
and rail construction. Crash barriers are present at the ends of the 
parapets. 
The road layout on the top of the structure consists of a 7.3 metre wide 
carriageway with a 1.925 metre footway on each side of the road.  
An Inspection of the bearings was carried out by Volker Laser on 4th 
September 2017. The finding of the report recommended replacement 
of the bearings and repair of the bearing plinths. 
The estimated cost of the works is £225,000. Existing capital funding 
will cover the difference. 

Carriageway 
Treatment 
(Highway 
Improvement) 

£4,039,530 (plus 
£4,000,000 
secured from 
Challenge fund 
phase 1). 

£1,450,000 As part of this year’s Highway Improvement Programme a number of 
reserve schemes were identified for completion should any additional 
funding become available. This will allow the Council to complete 
these (A343 Andover Road, Newbury in particular): 

P
age 8



The Secretary of State for Transport, The Rt. Hon. Grant Shapps 
MP, has recognised the work of the Highway Sector Council in 
his letter of the 7th May 2020 (attached) and made direct reference 
to Project SafeStart. Project SafeStart represents an effective way 
to restore local highway maintenance to their pre-COVID-19 levels 
and to also bring forward works - which would achieve the works 
acceleration that the Secretary of State wishes to see. 

Capital Hand 
Patching 

£278,000 £250,000 Following the prolonged period of wet weather last winter, there has 
been an increase in the number of carriageway defects being reported 
that exceed the Councils current investigatory levels. This has resulted 
in an increased pressure on this budget.  

 

 

 

P
age 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 10



Delegated Officer’s Decision
Reference Environment Department

. Allocation of additional Department for Transport grantSubject: funding.

That the funding be allocated in accordance with the
Decision taken: recommendation in the attached report and associated

Appendix C.

To ensure the funding is spent in accordance with the
Reason for decision taken: terms of the grant funding and to safeguard the integrity

of the Highway Asset.

Other options considered: As detailed in the attached report.
Decision taken by: Joseph Holmes

Scheme of Delegation Ret: 10.10.2

Job Title: Executive Director Resources
Those consulted: ClIrs Ross Mackinnon & Richard Somner
Background papers: Report attached.

I confirm that I have fully advised and have taken account of all the relevant facts in
making this decision.

. . Date Decision will be ImplementedDate Decision Made
(5 clear days)

07/07/2020 14/07/2020

Officer: <SH Qv4D-9
Witnessed by: jfI.
Date:

This decision is eligible to be ‘called-in’. However, if the decision has not been ‘called-in’
by 5.OOpm on 14/07/2020, then it will be implemented.

If you have any queries regarding this decision, please contact:
Name: Jon Wthstanley
Job Title: Service Director - Environment
Tel: 01635519087
Email: Jon. wthstanley@westberks.gov.uk

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12


	Agenda
	1 DfT Fund Delegated Decision Report
	Appendix C - Additional DfT Funding Proposed Allocation
	200624 Delegated Officer Decision Form - DfT Pothole Funding


